
West of England LEP Board
Board Meeting

Friday, 12 June 2020, 9.00 am
Meeting not open to the public

Zoe Metcalfe Arup
Joanne Rumley Foot Anstey
Margot Day Buro Happold
Richard Bonner Arcadis
Natasha Swinscoe Academic Health Science Network
Heather Cooper Hargreaves Lansdown
Prof Steve West (Chair) West of England LEP
Katharine Finn (Vice-Chair) PwC
David Brown The Bristol Port Company
Prof Hugh Brady University of Bristol
Martino Burgess Gregg Latchams
Neil Douglas Viper Innovations
Christopher Grier Airbus
Dick Penny Watershed
Jon Reynolds GDS Digital
Mohammed Saddiq Wessex Water
Mayor Marvin Rees Bristol City Council
Cllr Toby Savage South Gloucestershire
Mayor Tim Bowles West of England Combined Authority
Cllr Dine Romero Bath and North East Somerset
Cllr Donald Davies North Somerset Council

AGENDA

Subject Presenting Pages

1.  Welcome and Apologies

 Apologies from Christopher Grier 

2.  Minutes of the meeting held on 21 April 2020

To approve minutes from the previous meeting.

3 - 6

3.  Declaration of Interests

All Board members have a responsibility to treat all 
proposals/projects equally and impartially and must therefore 
declare whether they or their organisation has either a direct 
or indirect interest in any of the projects to be considered by 
the Board.

1.1. Items for discussion

4.  Future Scenarios 7 - 10

Public Document Pack



Future economic scenarios
Open discussion on possible future 
economic scenarios that can be used as 
the basis for recovery planning.

Discussion points:
 Which scenario dimensions 

described in the paper do the 
Board consider to be most 
important to consider in 
developing possible future 
scenarios for recovery planning?

 Which scenario dimensions 
described in the paper are most 
relevant for the specific 
circumstances of the West of 
England?

5.  LGF update

To report on progress with the delivery of the Local Growth 
Fund programme including the current funding position, 
risks and the impact of Covid-19. 

11 - 20

6.  Any Other Business



 

West of England LEP Board  
Tuesday 21 April 2020, 9:30am  
Zoom conference call  
 
Present: 
Prof Steve West, West of England LEP 
Katharine Finn, PwC 
Christopher Grier, Airbus 
Dick Penny, Independent Consultant 
Heather Cooper, Hargreaves Lansdown 
Joanne Rumley, Foot Anstey 
Jon Reynolds, GDS Digital 
Margot Day, Buro Happold 
Mohammed Saddiq, Wessex Water 
Natasha Swinscoe, WEAHSN 
 

Neil Douglas, Viper Innovations 
Richard Bonner, Arcadis 
Zoe Metcalfe, Arup 
Mayor Marvin Rees, Bristol City Council 
Richard Bonner, Arcadis 
Zoe Metcalfe, Arup 
Mayor Marvin Rees, Bristol City Council 
Cllr Donald Davies, North Somerset Council 
Cllr Toby Savage, South Gloucestershire 
Mayor Tim Bowles, WECA 
 

Officers in Attendance: 
Patricia Greer, Chief Executive, WECA 
Shahzia Daya, WECA 
Stephen Bashford, WECA 
Jessica Lee, WECA 
Helen Edelstyn, WECA  
 

Nick Evans, WECA 
Melissa Houston, WECA 
Menna Davies, WECA 
Hannah Shackleford, Bristol City Council  

Apologies: 
David Brown, The Bristol Port Company Cllr Dine Romero, Bath & North East Somerset 

Council 
 
 Action 
1   Welcome, housekeeping and apologies were noted 

 
 

2   Preparing for next steps of managed exit and recovery 
Steve introduced the item and invited Patricia Greer and Stephen Bashford to 
update members on current activities. 
 
National Recovery Plan 
Patricia Greer informed members that WECA had been talking to Government [at 
both officer and ministerial level] and through the M9 discussions around the 
transition/exit stage had begun.  
 
With social distancing likely to continue, discussions are being had on which 
sectors will be unlocked first. There will be cost implications to businesses to meet 
certain requirements, therefore packages of financial support will need to be 
adaptable. 
 
Going forward there will be a bigger emphasis on skills and an opportunity to drive 
more people into education, particularly online. With regards to the next steps in 
recovery, framing our activities around the LIS and sectors is key but the biggest 
challenge will be meeting the needs of a new future and not just rebuilding what 
went before.  
 
Looking at structures, government at setting up a National Political board. 
Composition is still evolving but Combined Authorities will play a key role and 
under this will be regional economic recovery boards - part of this will involve 
rebuilding our sector groups. 
 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 
 

 

 
Regional Economic Recovery Taskforce 
Stephen Bashford updated the board on the regional economic recovery 
taskforce, a group that needs to be agile and responsive to deal with a fast-
moving landscape. 
 
Over the next 6-month the initial focus will be: 
1) Gathering intelligence. This will help to build a clear regional perspective. 
2) Develop a plan to help the economy rebuild [led by the evidence and to be 

action based]. 
 

Stephen referred to the Terms of Reference document for the taskforce, looking at 
the practicalities of the group, such as membership and an open discussion 
developed around how the sector groups and thematic workstreams will work 
together with concerns around duplication and crossover which could get 
confusing. Stephen confirmed that the team have started to map out the 
framework and engage with potential sector leads. 
 
In discussion the following points were made: 
 Coordination is key – we need a single clear message to avoid confusion and 

duplication 
 Construction and housing sectors will be important due to the multiplier effect 
 Challenge will be to ensure that businesses from all parts of society are 

represented 
 Infrastructure will be increasingly important to consider, including broadband 

as well as transport, logistics and utilities – all important enablers to the 
recovery 

 Need to be inclusive in recovery planning to ensure it is future proof – young 
people and disadvantaged groups should be involved 

 
 

3   Immediate response to current situation 
Steve introduced the item and invited the leaders and Mayor to update members 
on the areas of focus within their unitary authorities.  
 
At Bristol City Council the emphasis has been on food, domestic violence and 
child abuse, resulting in more resources and increasing the size of the teams. 
Mayor Rees is also having weekly calls with core cities, focusing on the economic 
recovery. 
 
At South Gloucestershire Council the importance of seeing a locality approach to 
recovery is key, making sure what we talk about does materialise into real 
community action. Cllr Savage believes that the comms is important and that the 
LEP needs to publicize the work we’re doing more widely.  
 
At North Somerset the focus has been to push out grants, however many 
organisations are not claiming. Cllr Davies requested support from members in 
spreading the message and encouraging businesses to apply for the support 
available. Concerns with the tourism and hospitality sectors were also highlighted 
as needing support particularly as these are likely to be the last released from 
lockdown. 
 

 

4  AOB 
Steve was pleased to announce that the Nightingale hospital at UWE has been 
handed over to the Health Trust. It will be formally opened on the 26th April. 

 

Page 4



 
 

 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 4 
West of England Local Enterprise Partnership 
Board meeting – June 12th 2020 
 
Future scenarios  
 
Purpose of the report 
 
1. To provide the LEP Board with an overview of the national and regional trends that are 

emerging in the recovery from the Covid-19 crisis to support a discussion of potential 
future scenarios and the possible opportunities and challenges for the region. It also 
provides an update on progress of the Economic Recovery Taskforce subgroups. 
 

2. Based on this information, the discussion at the Board meeting will focus on building a 
LEP Board view of a small number of possible future scenarios that can be used as the 
basis of recovery planning. 
  

 
Recommendation 
 
That the LEP Board consider the following questions: 

• Do the Board recognise the trends outlined from their own experience? Are there 
other things missing? 

• Given these trends at national and regional level what are the key opportunities 
and challenges for the region? 

• Which dimensions do the LEP Board consider to be most important to consider in 
developing possible future scenarios for recovery planning? 
 

Background: Economic Recovery Taskforce subgroup progress  
 

3. Sector leads have been partnered with their WECA contact to support them in 
convening conversations across their sector. They will be capturing conversations to 
understand sector-specific challenges and opportunities. The structure will follow three 
phases: 

• crisis response and exit from lockdown; 
• adaptation and resilience; 
• renewing and growing. 

 
4. Sector conversations and intelligence gathering has commenced and will continue this 

week, before the next Taskforce meeting on 16 June. The focus of the meeting will be: 
• national activities and our reporting back to government; 
• using future scenarios to develop the principles to shape recovery; and 
• initial feedback from sector-based discussions. 

 
Scenario planning 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 
 

 
 

 
5. The pandemic is creating significant damage to the economy, and the outlook over the 

next few months and year is highly uncertain. However, some aspects of the outlook 
have started to emerge: 

• Government is aiming to continue easing lockdown restrictions, with retail and 
schools gradually reopening in June and many of the remaining businesses 
following in July; 

• work from home will continue where possible, and businesses will need to 
maintain social distancing on their premises for several months to come, 
potentially until a vaccine or treatment is available for covid; 

• the removal of restrictions may allow the economy to rebound faster than 
from previous recessions, given previous strength, but significant challenges 
will remain for some sectors and it is likely to be some time before business 
and consumer confidence returns. 

 
6. Two key scenarios provide an initial baseline for the level of economic damage that may 

be occurring, although these are not forecasts: 
• the Office for Budget Responsibility in April set out a scenario of a 35% 

drop in output in Quarter 2 (Q2), followed by a rebound to growth of 27% in 
Q3. This would produce an overall drop of 12.8% in GDP in 2020, based on 
three months of lockdown and three months of gradual return to normality. 
Unemployment would rise to 10% initially before falling back gradually; 

• the Bank of England illustrative scenario similarly sets out a sharp fall and 
rebound, with a 14% drop in GDP in 2020, and unemployment at 8%. A 
quarter of spending lost during lockdown might be made up gradually later. 

 
7. Beyond the immediate challenges of the lockdown period, there are a number of 

dimensions of uncertainty with implications for the West of England’s economy in the 
coming months. Although the precise scale of these is unclear, generally the direction of 
travel is starting to emerge. 

 
8. Dimension 1: duration of recession will determine the level of long-term damage in 

unemployment and business failures. The length of the recession depends directly on 
the duration of social distancing measures, including the possibility of a second spike of 
infections, but also on how quickly business and consumer spending resumes as 
restrictions are lifted. On current plans, non-essential retail is due to re-open in June, 
and government aims to re-open all other businesses from July, with ongoing safety 
restrictions. For many businesses, ongoing restrictions will severely curtail capacity and 
some may still not be able to operate viably. Clearly, a second spike in infections would 
create significant further damage: the Bank of England estimates that each additional 
two weeks of lockdown cuts annual GDP by an additional 1¼%. Moreover, consumers 
and businesses are likely to be cautious in spending, given job losses and continued 
uncertainty. 

 

Page 8



 
 

 
 

9. Dimension 2: Government’s approach to recovery will shape the context for the 
region’s recovery plan, and opportunities available to businesses. The Government has 
enacted a significant short-term support and stimulus package, but is clear that such 
support cannot continue indefinitely. There is currently no clear statement of the 
medium- to long-term approach to stimulus. The Prime Minister has ruled out a return to 
austerity measures, and ‘levelling up’ appears to remain a priority, but uncertainty 
remains on the scale and scope of any potential stimulus package, and the extent to 
which implementation will be decentralised. 

 
10. Dimension 3: Economic and social trends may be accelerated, and the crisis will 

change the behaviour of consumers and businesses in unpredictable ways. Some pre-
existing trends may be accelerating, and businesses may also look to reshape their 
operations to build resilience and competitiveness, reacting to altered market conditions. 
These changes present both challenges and opportunities for businesses. Potential 
trends affecting broad parts of the economy could include: 

• faster digitisation, with new online business models, more online retail, and 
persistently higher levels of home working; 

• deglobalisation, as businesses and government seek to increase resilience by 
‘re-shoring’ or diversifying supply chains;  

• health impacts on the workforce, both directly as a result of covid and mental 
health issues arising from the lockdown; and 

• widening inequality, as the health and economic harms from the pandemic 
tend to fall disproportionately on certain groups and people with lower pay, 
reinforcing existing disparities. This may be compounded by the pre-existing 
shift towards the ‘knowledge economy’, which may reduce opportunities for 
those made redundant in the current crisis. 

 
11. Dimension 4: Sector-specific impacts could have significant effects on the region’s 

firms. The effects of the pandemic vary considerably across different sectors; of 
particular relevance to the West of England are: 

• tourism and the visitor economy is hard hit by the reliance on face-to-face 
contact, vulnerability to loss of peak season revenues, and expected slow 
return of international travel; 

• aerospace also faces a long-term challenge. Falls in air travel have led 
airlines to anticipate two or more years of reduced capacity, and 
manufacturers including Airbus and Rolls Royce have begun making 
redundancies; 

• shifts to online retail and drops in footfall could accelerate changes to High 
Streets, with effects felt differently across the region. 

 
Q: Do the Board recognise the trends outlined from their own experience? Are there 
other things missing? 
 
Opportunities and challenges for the region 

 

Page 9



 
 

 
 

12. The emerging shape of the economic recovery, sketched out in the scenarios above, 
suggest some key opportunities for the West of England to explore in designing our 
recovery plan. Residents and businesses alike have changed behaviour dramatically 
during the crisis, and there may be scope to turn this agility and inventiveness into long-
term support for the objectives of clean and inclusive growth:  

• embedding greater technology and training adoption in businesses. Retaining 
beneficial parts of lockdown working practices, and supporting businesses to 
adapt and innovate, will help strengthen resilience and also build new 
business models; 

• taking advantage of the region’s strengths in creative, digital, and advanced 
engineering industries to exploit growth opportunities emerging nationally. 
Potential examples might include building regional manufacturing supply 
chain clusters to enhance resilience, and developing new digital tools; 

• shaping recovery planning to encourage businesses to transition to low-
carbon models. Taking advantage of the agility mindset in the current crisis 
may present opportunities to enhance resilience for the climate emergency;  

• embedding inclusion, to ensure that recovery helps low paid key workers, 
encouraging access to work, good working practices, and career progression; 
and 

• seeking to embed positive change among residents, most notably in travel 
patterns. More sustainable travel could be promoted, potentially in response 
to greater home working, but also by entrenching higher levels of walking and 
cycling. 

 
Q: Given these trends at national and regional level, what are the key opportunities 
and challenges for the region? 
 
 
Discussion:  

• Which dimensions do the LEP Board consider to be most important to 
consider in developing possible future scenarios for recovery planning?  

• Which dimensions are most relevant for the specific circumstances of the West 
of England? 

 
 
 
 

Page 10



1
 

Agenda Item 5 
West of England Local Enterprise Partnership 
Board meeting – 12 June 2020 
 
Review of LGF Programme Delivery 

Purpose of the report 
 
1. To report on progress with the delivery of the Local Growth Fund programme including 

the current funding position, risks and the impact of Covid-19. 
  

Recommendation 
 
To seek views on the LGF programme, the forecast spend position and risks.  
 
LGF Funding  

2. The West of England was awarded £202.1m of capital funding through the Local 
Growth Fund for the period 2015/16 to 2020/21. Whilst requirements around spend in 
year that were in place for the first two years of the Fund have been relaxed, there has 
always been a requirement that all funds are to be spent by March 2021. 
 

3. It was hoped that this hard end date for the LGF would be relaxed as the funding period 
came to a close but, despite lobbying through a number of channels, that has not 
proved the case. Indeed, owing to the impact of Covid-19 Government are revising 
arrangements for LGF payments with 2/3 paid at this time followed by ‘a period of joint 
working and review over the Summer on contractual commitments and likely spend 
over the remainder of the year’. Further details are provided in the letter from Stephen 
Jones, Co-Director of the Cities & Local Growth (CLoG) Unit provided in Appendix 1.  

4. To mitigate the impact of delay to schemes within the programme and ensure full grant 
spend by March, we have for some time been employing overprogramming. This 
currently stands at some £12m. It should be noted that this overprogramming will 
translate into an actual funding requirement in 2020/21 if all schemes deliver as 
currently planned, or in 2021/22 otherwise, and in reality, these projects will represent 
a commitment, and will be first call, against successor funding for which the details are 
awaited. It should be noted that we have now issued offer letters to contract projects 
beyond the total LGF funds held or expected to a value of £7.3m. 
 

5. Given this overprogramming, and with all but 3 projects in the LGF programme in 
delivery, it is expected that we will be well placed to meet the criteria that ‘where there 
are contractual c

’ 
stated in the letter. We have already presented this position to CLoG including the 
impact that withholding the 1/3 funding (some £11.4m) to the Autumn would have in 
terms of meeting WECA’s contractual commitments with scheme promoters, and risks 
of having to slow or cease projects and on cashflow. 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



2
 

6. It appears this approach by Government may be driven in response to some LEPs who 
have faced particular delivery challenges, but would appear to penalise in particular, 
those LEPs like ourselves, who have made good progress with delivery, and have 
already committed funding to achieve this. 

LGF Delivery and Impact of COVID-19 

7. The schemes within the LGF programme which have grant funding still to be claimed 
are shown in Appendix 2 together the amount. This reflects progress reports submitted 
in April when the impact of COVID-19 was starting to be understood. The total LGF left 
to be claimed is some £44.1m and all approved projects currently report the ability to 
spend funding this financial year, albeit many highlight risks around doing so and a 
number flag the likelihood of slippage into 21/22.  
 

8. It is clear that the impact that schemes are facing with delivery are not universal and 
reflect the particular specifics of the project, the challenges faced, the degree to which 
social distancing can be observed and the implications for the supply chain. Appendix 
2 provides an update from the promoters of a number of LGF projects which seeks to 
present a cross section. These range from projects continuing to make good progress 
eg South Bristol Advanced Construction Skill Centre which is still on programme and 
budget; those facing slight delays eg SGS College Brunel Centre; where construction 
is operating at lower capacity eg around 60% for the Institute of Advanced Automotive 
Propulsion Systems; those reporting cost pressures eg Composite Bridge Construction 
and projects facing supply chain issues eg Umbrella. 
 

9. It is worth noting that for a number of schemes the LGF will only form part of the funding 
mix and in these cases there is the opportunity to front fund the LGF and back end the 
match to help mitigate any delay. 
 

10. The next set of progress reports are expected in July and this should provide a more 
accurate picture of the delivery position for the overall programme. It is hoped that the 
confirmation of full funding will have be received by this time, but if that is not the case 
further consideration will be required as to how any funding shortfall or deferment is to 
be managed. This will also need to consider how the overprogramming (whether this 
materialises in 20/21 or 21/22) is to be managed should details of successor funding 
not be known.  

LGF Dashboard 

11. A spreadsheet based update on progress with the delivery of the LGF programme is 
provided quarterly to CLoG. This includes a dashboard which summarises progress 
with each project and the LGF programme overall.   
 

12. Guidance requires that ‘before submitting to CLoG, you must have appropriate sign 
off [of the dashboard] by the LEP Board (or Chief Exec if this is not possible in a 
particular quarter) and the Section 151 Officer.’   
 

Page 12



3
 

13. At the LEP Board meeting in January 2019 it was agreed that where reporting cycles 
align, then the dashboard will be provided to the LEP Board for approval, but where 
this is not possible sign off will be via the LEP Chair and Chief Executive.  
 

14. The Quarter 4 19/20 dashboard, which is shown in Appendix 4, was signed off by 
the LEP Chair and Chief Executive and submitted to CLoG in May.  

Appendix 1: Letter from Stephen Jones regarding LGF in 20/21 
Appendix 2: Current Forecast 2020/21 LGF Spend Profile 
Appendix 3: Reported Impact of COVID-19 on Selected LGF Projects 
Appendix 4: LGF Q4 19/20 Dashboard  
  

Page 13



2 Marsham Street, London SW1P 4DF 
www. gov.uk/beis 

 
Direct Line 07557 485026 | Enquiries 020 7215 5000 

Email Stephen.jones@beis.gov.uk | Enquiries enquiries@beis.gov.uk 

13 May 2020 

Dear LEP Chief Executives  

Local Growth Fund in 2020-21  

I am writing to you to set out in more detail the approach to paying your 2020-21 LGF allocation (the final 
year in this current programme) and how we will work with you to manage that. I hope that this note 
provides the clarity needed.  

In confirming LGF allocations this year, we are looking to balance a wider set of issues than previously. 
Clearly timely and impactful investment decisions are crucial to stimulating local economies, creating jobs 
and setting your areas up for the best possible re-start and recovery from the Covid 19 crisis. We have also 
heard from you on the disruption and slippage to some LGF capital programmes, and concern that some 
LEPs might be unable to spend before March 2021. We recognise that this is not a uniform picture, depending 
on how you have previously managed the pipeline, the nature of the projects and interdependence with 
private sector funding. The risks that we are looking to manage extend across all capital programmes and 
not just LGF, which is why Government is having to review programme payments in light of COVID and the 
effect it will have on some delivery plans.  

Given this uncertainty we therefore need to take a more active role in understanding the contractual status 
of projects, what the risk of slippage is, and to work with you individually on the best way of managing 

Meanwhile I am happy to confirm again where 
to manage spend of that allocation across the programme in year, 
paid in full.  

It is on this basis we will initially pay 2/3 of your LGF allocations for FY2020-21 in May followed by a period 
of joint working and review over the Summer on contractual commitments and likely spend over the 
remainder of the year. This will then unlock Ministerial confirmation on the final 1/3 to be paid after the 
review.  If however there are LEPs with ongoing spend against contractual commitments exceeding the 2/3 
allocated, evidencing the need for earlier payment we will work with the relevant LEP, providing further LGF 

  For the review we will need to understand your 
pipeline, your current and forecast position on contractual commitments, and how you will manage spend 
against your programmes this financial year within your freedoms and flexibilities. We recognise this may 
include interdependent decisions with other funding streams. The conclusions of the review point will also 
be a moment to demonstrate to Ministers what you are prioritising locally as strategically important to the 
long-term economic success of your areas.   

In advance of initiating the review period, we want to work with you on agreeing the most appropriate and 
proportionate ways of bringing together all the relevant information and considerations. We are therefore 

with us in designing that 
 that is 

settled your Unit Area Lead will work closely with you to discuss and complete it. If you or your accountable 
body have any more specific challenges as a result of our approach, we are of course happy to discuss.   

 

Page 14



2 Marsham Street, London SW1P 4DF 
www. gov.uk/beis 

 
Direct Line 07557 485026 | Enquiries 020 7215 5000 

Email Stephen.jones@beis.gov.uk | Enquiries enquiries@beis.gov.uk 

May I take this opportunity to say thank you again for all the work you and your colleagues have been doing 
in recent weeks  these are clearly exceptional times and your input into Government is making a real 
difference in how we can best work with you and support local economies. Thank you in advance for your 
understanding, and for your co-operation, with everything here as well.   

I am copying this letter to your Chairs.   

Yours faithfully 

 

Stephen Jones 
Co-Director 
Cities & Local Growth Unit 

Page 15



4
 

Appendix 2

Current Forecast 2020/21 LGF Spend Profile  

 

Local Growth Fund Schemes

MetroWest Phase 1 Development Costs 7,159                              
Sustainable Transport Package 17/18 110                                  
West Wick Rbt and North South Link 130                                  
Portway Station 1,553                              
A4018 Corridor Improvements 3,103                              
Weston-super-Mare Town Centre  Enhancement 1,755                              
Keynsham Town Centre Improvements 1,330                              
South Glos Sustainable Transpoprt Package 1,922                              
FE Skills Capital Schemes
South Bristol Construction Centre 4,733                              
Bath College Catering & Hospitality Training Hub 1,382                              
SGS Brunel Building (STEAM Centre ) 5,250                              
Infrastructure Schemes
Superfast Broadband SGC 40                                    
Superfast Broadband CDS 400                                  
Town Square, Weston-super-Mare 131                                  
Bath Quays Bridge 249                                  
Colston Hall Phase 2 Transformation Project 6,405                              
Bath Quays South Phase 1a Enabling Infrastructure 1,666                              
Bath Quays North Phase 1b Relocation of Coach Park 80                                    
Bath Quays North Initial Development Works 6,954                              
Purchase of Land at Bristol and Bath Science Park 856                                  
Innovation Schemes
FoodWorksSW  Innovation Centre 475                                  
Composites Bridge Construction 4,138                              
OPCR -  Sensor Factory, CAV & KWMC 493                                  
Umbrella 2,914                              
IAAPS 2,000                              
Grow-On2 Temporary Building 874                                  

56,102                            

44,129
11,973

Subject to approval of Change Request at Joint Committee

Total Funds Available
Overprogramming

Funds to be claimed 
in 20/21 £000s

Note: the table is based on forecasts from the latest Highlight Reports and may not reflect actual 
claims where these have recently been submitted which are reflected on the dashboard in Appendix 3.

Transport Schemes

Page 16



  5 
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 3
R

ep
o

rt
ed

 Im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 o
n

 S
el

ec
te

d
 L

G
F

 P
ro

je
ct

s

Pr
oj

ec
t 

U
pd

at
e 

U
m

br
el

la
  

D
ue

 U
K 

w
id

e 
CO

VI
D

-1
9 

lo
ck

do
w

n,
 it

 is
 h

ig
hl

y 
lik

el
y 

th
at

 d
el

iv
er

y 
tim

el
in

es
 fo

r t
he

 U
m

br
el

la
 (U

rb
an

 M
ul

ti 
W

ire
le

ss
 B

ro
ad

ba
nd

 &
 Io

T 
te

st
in

g 
fo

r 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

&
 In

du
st

ria
l A

pp
lic

at
io

ns
)p

ro
je

ct
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

to
 b

e 
ex

te
nd

ed
 d

ue
 to

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 c

om
po

ne
nt

s,
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t a
nd

 s
up

pl
y 

ch
ai

n 
re

so
ur

ce
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
ci

vi
ls

 w
or

ks
 a

s 
it’

s 
no

t p
os

si
bl

e 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 2
 m

et
re

s d
is

ta
nc

in
g 

ru
le

. S
up

pl
y 

ch
ai

n 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 im
pa

ct
ed

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t d
ue

 to
 lo

ck
do

w
n.

  

Co
m

po
si

te
s 

Br
id

ge
 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Im
pa

ct
ed

 b
y 

D
ev

el
op

er
/P

la
nn

in
g 

is
su

es
 –

 n
ow

 c
on

cl
ud

ed
 –

 a
nd

 th
e 

Co
vi

d-
19

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
ha

ve
 a

 m
aj

or
 in

flu
en

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
So

m
e 

m
ile

st
on

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
ut

 b
ac

k 
tw

o 
m

on
th

s.
 

W
or

k 
is

 p
ro

gr
es

si
ng

 w
hi

le
 ta

ki
ng

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s.

 H
ow

ev
er

, c
om

m
un

ity
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
st

al
le

d 
du

e 
to

 d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
CO

VI
D

-1
9.

 T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
ls

o 
ex

pe
ct

s 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
di

ff
ic

ul
tie

s 
on

 s
om

e 
el

em
en

ts
 w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 ti
gh

t a
cc

es
s,

 h
ow

ev
er

 th
e 

pr
om

ot
er

s 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 c

lo
se

 w
ith

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
en

gi
ne

er
s 

on
 s

af
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 m
et

ho
ds

. T
he

re
 is

 ri
sk

 th
at

 s
om

e 
el

em
en

ts
 o

f w
or

k 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 lo

ng
er

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

af
fe

ct
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
  

Cu
rr

en
tly

 re
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
w

id
er

 w
or

ks
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 a

nd
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r o
th

er
 s

ch
em

es
 to

 re
m

ai
n 

on
 s

ite
 fo

r l
on

ge
r t

ha
n 

or
ig

in
al

ly
 p

la
nn

ed
 w

hi
ch

 
co

ul
d 

af
fe

ct
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
is

 s
ch

em
e.

 T
he

re
 is

 ri
sk

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

co
ul

d 
ex

te
nd

 b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

tim
es

ca
le

.  

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, a

 re
ce

nt
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f a

ll 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 s

ho
w

s 
th

er
e 

is 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 c

os
ts

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 o
f 1

5%
.  

Ba
th

 Q
ua

ys
 

Br
id

ge
Th

e 
br

id
ge

 s
up

er
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

ha
s 

no
w

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 it

s 
jo

ur
ne

y 
fr

om
 B

el
gi

um
 a

nd
 th

e 
fin

al
 tw

o 
se

ct
io

ns
 w

er
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 to
 s

ite
 o

n 
th

e
19

 
M

ay
.

W
el

di
ng

 o
f t

he
 b

rid
ge

 s
ec

tio
ns

 is
 p

ro
gr

es
si

ng
.

D
el

ay
s 

to
 th

e 
su

bs
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

ili
ng

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

pr
ol

on
ga

tio
n 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 re

su
lt 

in
 a

 d
el

ay
 to

 th
e 

br
id

ge
 in

st
al

la
tio

n 
an

d 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 
op

en
in

g.
  A

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

up
da

te
 is

 a
w

ai
te

d;
 h

ow
ev

er
 it

 is
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 th

at
 b

rid
ge

 in
st

al
la

tio
n 

du
rin

g 
20

20
 is

 a
t r

is
k.

 

Page 17



  6 
 Br

un
el

 C
en

tr
e 

(S
TE

A
M

 C
en

tr
e)

 
Th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
ha

s 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

op
er

at
io

na
l t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t M
ar

ch
, A

pr
il,

 a
nd

 M
ay

 2
02

0 
al

be
it 

at
 a

 re
du

ce
d 

pa
ce

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 a
dj

us
t 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
is

es
 re

fle
ct

in
g 

CO
VI

D
-1

9 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
, s

af
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
is

es
 a

nd
 s

up
pl

y 
ch

ai
n 

sh
or

ta
ge

s 
(p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 la

bo
ur

). 

W
ill

m
ot

t D
ix

on
 (W

D
) h

av
e 

no
w

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 th

e 
gr

ou
nd

 w
or

ks
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

co
m

m
en

ce
d 

er
ec

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
su

pe
r-

st
ru

ct
ur

e.

O
ve

ra
ll,

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
be

hi
nd

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

by
 2

.5
 w

ee
ks

, t
hi

s 
is

 in
 p

ar
t d

ue
 to

 th
e 

w
ea

th
er

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

0 
an

d 
th

e 
di

sr
up

tio
n 

to
 s

up
pl

y 
ch

ai
ns

 a
nd

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 C
-1

9 
pa

nd
em

ic
. T

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 e

st
im

at
ed

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

da
te

 is
 th

e 
26

th
M

ar
ch

 
20

21
. 

An
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f t

he
 d

el
ay

 c
os

ts
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

nd
 re

vi
se

d 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
ag

re
ed

. T
he

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t c

ov
er

s 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

up
 to

 th
e 

18
th

 M
ay

 
20

20
 (t

hi
s 

be
in

g 
th

e 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 fi
rs

t d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

CL
T 

fr
am

e)
. T

he
 c

os
t o

f d
el

ay
 a

s 
at

 th
is

 d
at

e 
is

 £
52

,7
54

. 

Th
e 

N
EC

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 s

up
po

rt
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s c

la
im

 fo
r c

os
ts

 a
nd

 ti
m

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

CO
VI

D
-1

9 
Pa

nd
em

ic
. A

 tr
ac

ke
r i

s 
be

in
g 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
ed

 e
ve

ry
 tw

o 
w

ee
ks

 to
 c

ap
tu

re
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 ti
m

e,
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 c
os

ts
. 

Th
er

e 
re

m
ai

ns
 a

 ri
sk

 o
f a

dd
iti

on
al

 d
el

ay
s 

an
d 

co
st

s 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

ho
w

 C
O

VI
D

-1
9 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
 im

pa
ct

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t b

et
w

ee
n 

no
w

 a
nd

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f 

co
m

pl
et

io
n.

  

Co
ls

to
n 

H
al

l 
Ph

as
e 

2 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 

Th
e 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 C
O

VI
D

-1
9 

pa
nd

em
ic

 w
as

 th
at

 th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s 

W
ill

m
ot

t D
ix

on
, f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t g
ui

de
lin

es
, i

nt
ro

du
ce

d 
so

ci
al

 d
is

ta
nc

in
g 

w
or

k 
m

ea
su

re
s 

on
 s

ite
 in

 m
id

-M
ar

ch
.

Th
is

 in
ev

ita
bl

y 
re

du
ce

d 
w

or
k 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 b
ut

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
co

nt
in

ue
d.

 A
s 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

gu
id

el
in

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 u
pd

at
ed

, s
o 

w
or

k 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

n 
si

te
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

du
rin

g 
la

te
 A

pr
il 

an
d 

M
ay

.  
Ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

re
 n

ow
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 s
ee

 a
 

re
su

m
pt

io
n 

of
 n

or
m

al
 w

or
k 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
n 

si
te

 w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

pa
ce

 b
ei

ng
 u

se
d 

in
 C

ol
st

on
 H

al
l t

o 
fo

llo
w

 s
oc

ia
l d

is
ta

nc
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s f

ro
m

 e
nd

 
M

ay
.  

Th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
hi

s 
an

d 
th

e 
co

m
pl

ex
iti

es
 o

f t
he

 c
ap

ita
l p

ro
je

ct
 m

ea
n 

th
at

 th
er

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
so

m
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l d
el

ay
 to

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
 F

or
 th

is
 re

as
on

, d
ra

w
do

w
n 

of
 th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 c
ap

ita
l a

llo
ca

tio
n 

is
 d

el
ay

ed
 u

nt
il 

la
te

r i
n 

20
/2

1.
 

N
or

th
 S

ou
th

 
Li

nk
 

Th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

pl
an

ne
d 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

da
te

 is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 sl

ip
 b

ac
k 

fu
rt

he
r d

ue
 to

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t C

O
VI

D
-1

9 
si

tu
at

io
n 

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

co
nt

ra
ct

 is
 n

ow
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

at
 a

 re
du

ce
d 

ou
tp

ut
 le

ve
l g

en
er

at
in

g 
ad

di
tio

na
l c

os
ts

 a
dh

er
in

g 
to

 c
ur

re
nt

 g
ui

de
lin

es
 a

nd
 a

dv
ic

e 
fr

om
 c

en
tr

al
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t o

n 
CO

VI
D

-1
9.

 U
nk

no
w

n 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

es
 o

f t
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f C
O

VI
D

-1
9 

on
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

 

Page 18



  7 
 So

ut
h 

Br
is

to
l 

A
dv

an
ce

d 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Sk

ill
 C

en
tr

e 

  

Pr
oj

ec
t r

em
ai

ns
 o

n 
bu

dg
et

 a
nd

 o
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

  T
he

 m
ai

n 
co

nc
er

n,
 n

ot
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 C

ol
le

ge
 b

ut
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 in
 g

en
er

al
 is

 th
e 

ris
k 

th
at

 th
e 

CO
VI

D
-1

9 
pa

nd
em

ic
 m

ay
 im

pa
ct

, a
nd

 d
el

ay
 w

or
ks

 o
ut

si
de

 o
f p

ro
gr

am
m

ed
 d

at
es

. T
he

y 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 m
on

ito
r a

nd
 re

vi
ew

 p
os

si
bl

e 
co

nt
in

en
ci

es
. 

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t h

as
 n

ot
 s

uf
fe

re
d 

an
y 

de
la

y 
to

 d
at

e,
 a

nd
 w

e 
re

m
ai

n 
on

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d 

bu
dg

et
.

W
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 m

on
ito

r, 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

, a
ny

 p
ot

en
tia

l d
is

ru
pt

io
n 

fr
om

 e
ith

er
 la

bo
ur

, m
at

er
ia

ls
 o

r s
up

pl
y 

ch
ai

ns
.

In
st

itu
te

 o
f 

A
dv

an
ce

d 
A

ut
om

ot
iv

e 
Pr

op
ul

si
on

 
Sy

st
em

s 
(IA

AP
S)

 

  

U
nt

il 
m

id
-M

ar
ch

 2
02

0,
 IA

AP
S 

re
m

ai
ne

d 
on

 tr
ac

k 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 in
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

1 
w

ith
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 h

ol
di

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t s
up

pl
ie

r i
n 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g.
 C

O
VI

D
-1

9 
ha

s 
ha

d 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, i
ni

tia
lly

 lo
ok

in
g 

lik
e 

th
e 

si
te

 w
ou

ld
 

cl
os

e 
du

e 
to

 la
bo

ur
 a

nd
 m

at
er

ia
l s

ho
rt

ag
es

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 m
ai

n 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ab

le
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
at

 
c.

60
%

 c
ap

ac
ity

 w
hi

ls
t a

dh
er

in
g 

to
 s

af
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

s 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

by
 th

e 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 C
ou

nc
il.

 T
he

 m
ai

n 
re

se
ar

ch
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
pr

ov
id

er
 h

as
 m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
d 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t a

nd
 is

 re
ad

y 
to

 m
ob

ili
se

 o
nc

e 
th

ei
r a

re
as

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

be
co

m
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 s
ta

rt
 in

st
al

la
tio

n.
  

An
 o

ve
ra

ll 
de

la
y 

of
 c

. 3
m

on
th

s 
to

 th
e 

op
en

in
g 

of
 IA

AP
S 

is
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
, n

ow
 fo

re
ca

st
 fo

r J
un

e 
20

21
, s

ub
je

ct
 to

 s
ite

 w
or

ks
 b

ei
ng

 a
bl

e 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

on
go

in
g 

CO
VI

D
-1

9 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 o
n 

m
ov

em
en

t. 
Th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

te
am

 h
as

 m
ov

ed
 to

 re
m

ot
e-

w
or

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 p
ro

gr
es

s o
th

er
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f I
AA

PS
 d

el
iv

er
y 

su
ch

 a
s 

bu
si

ne
ss

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
IT

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
po

lic
y 

de
si

gn
 th

at
 w

ill
 b

e 
cr

uc
ia

lly
 im

po
rt

an
t t

o 
IA

AP
S 

go
-li

ve
.  

O
ve

ra
ll,

 IA
AP

S 
re

m
ai

ns
 o

n-
tr

ac
k 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 w
or

ld
-c

la
ss

 re
se

ar
ch

 fa
ci

lit
y 

in
 2

02
1 

ev
en

 in
 th

is
 d

iff
ic

ul
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 

Ba
th

 Q
ua

ys
 

So
ut

h 
Ph

as
e 

1
Th

e 
si

te
 h

as
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

 re
m

ai
ne

d 
op

en
 s

in
ce

 lo
ck

 d
ow

n 
w

as
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f M
ar

ch
 2

02
0,

 b
ar

 a
 tw

o-
da

y 
pe

rio
d 

w
hi

ls
t a

 ri
sk

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t w
as

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

by
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l d
is

ta
nc

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

D
es

ig
n 

w
or

k 
an

d
ch

ec
ki

ng
 o

f t
he

 ri
ve

r 
w

al
l a

nd
 b

rid
ge

 s
ub

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 h

as
 p

ro
gr

es
se

d 
w

ith
 s

om
e 

de
la

ys
 re

po
rt

ed
. 

Pi
lin

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 w

er
e 

de
la

ye
d 

du
e 

to
 a

 la
ck

 o
f l

oc
al

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 s

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 a
nd

 w
hi

ls
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 w
er

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
a 

re
m

ot
e-

co
nt

ro
l p

ili
ng

 ri
g.

  T
he

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 h
as

 a
ff

ec
te

d 
th

e 
w

id
er

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

  T
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

se
 d

el
ay

s 
an

d 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
pr

ol
on

ga
tio

n 
ha

s 
pu

t t
he

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

at
 ri

sk
.  

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
is

 re
po

rt
in

g 
de

la
ys

 b
et

w
ee

n 
1-

5 
m

on
th

s 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 o
rig

in
al

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
da

te
s.

 

Th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f C
O

VI
D

-1
9 

is
 c

on
tin

ua
lly

 b
ei

ng
 m

on
ito

re
d.

  D
ai

ly
 re

po
rt

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

ci
rc

ul
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 to

 o
ur

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

s.
 

Page 19



G
ro

w
th

 D
ea

l 
D

a
s

h
b

o
ar

d
L

E
P

 N
a

m
e

W
e

st
 o

f 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 L

E
P

G
ro

w
th

 D
e

a
l P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce

T
h

is
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r:
Q

4_
1

9
20

A
G

2
0

15
-1

6
2

0
16

-1
7

1
7

-1
8

1
8

-1
9

1
9

-2
0

2
0

-2
1

T
o

ta
l

1
7

-1
8

1
8

-1
9

1
9

-2
0

2
0

-2
1

2
1

-2
5

£
1

6,
6

0
0,

0
0

0
£

4
2,

4
0

6,
5

8
8

£
4

9,
8

3
1,

5
2

8
£

4
5,

3
7

0,
0

8
5

£
1

3,
5

7
5,

0
6

5
£

3
4,

3
1

2,
3

8
1

£
2

02
,0

95
,6

4
7

H
ou

se
s 

C
om

pl
e

te
d

0
0

0
0

0
0

-
0

F
o

re
ca

st
 f

o
r 

ye
a

r
0

-
0

0
0

5
4

6
1

,1
3

7
1

,6
8

3
P

ro
g

re
ss

 t
ow

a
rd

s 
fo

re
ca

st
-

-
-

-
-

0
%

-
0

%
L

G
F

 O
u

tt
u

rn
1

7
-1

8
1

8
-1

9
1

9
-2

0
2

0
-2

1
A

c
tu

al
 

1
2

,3
6

6
,3

6
5

£
  

   
  

5
6

,0
8

3
,2

4
1

£
  

   
 

1
8

,9
1

5
,1

0
2

£
  

   
 

4
0

,7
6

2
,5

2
3

£
  

   
  

4
3

,0
0

6
,9

8
9

£
  

  
-

£
  

   
  

  
   

  
  

 
1

5
8,

7
6

7,
8

5
5

£
  

   
  

  
J

o
b

s
F

o
re

c
a

st
 f

o
r 

ye
a

r
4

3
,0

0
6

,9
8

9
£

  
   

  
5

6
,0

8
3

,2
4

1
£

  
   

 
1

8
,9

1
5

,1
0

2
£

  
   

 
4

0
,7

6
2

,5
2

3
£

  
   

  
4

3
,0

0
6

,9
8

9
£

  
  

4
3

,3
2

7
,7

9
2

£
  

  
2

0
2,

0
9

5,
6

4
7

£
  

   
  

  
Jo

b
s 

C
re

a
te

d
8

2
0

8
5

8
2

1
1

,0
3

3
1

,2
5

1
0

-
3

,1
9

0
P

ro
g

re
s

s 
to

w
ar

d
s 

fo
re

c
a

s
t

2
9

%
1

0
0%

1
0

0%
1

0
0%

1
0

0%
0

%
7

9
%

A
p

p
re

nt
ic

e
sh

ip
s 

C
re

at
e

d
*

0
2

2
7

7
6

7
8

0
5

1
0

-
1

,1
2

5
Jo

b
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 A
p

pr
e

n
tic

e
sh

ip
s

8
2

0
3

1
2

1
,5

8
8

1
,1

1
3

1
,3

0
2

0
4

,3
1

5
L

G
F

 E
xp

e
n

d
it

u
re

F
o

re
ca

st
 f

o
r 

ye
a

r
1

,3
0

2
2

8
6

1
,5

8
8

1
,1

1
3

1
,3

0
2

2
,2

2
0

4
,8

1
5

1
1

,3
2

4
A

c
tu

al
 

1
2

,3
6

6
,3

6
5

£
  

   
  

5
6

,0
8

3
,2

4
1

£
  

   
 

1
8

,9
1

5
,1

0
2

£
  

   
 

4
0

,7
6

2
,5

2
3

£
  

   
  

4
3

,0
0

6
,9

8
9

£
  

  
-

£
  

   
  

  
   

  
  

 
1

5
8,

7
6

7,
8

5
5

£
  

   
  

  
P

ro
g

re
ss

 t
ow

a
rd

s 
fo

re
ca

st
6

3
%

1
0

0%
1

0
0%

1
0

0%
0

%
0

%
3

8
%

F
o

re
c

a
st

 f
o

r 
ye

a
r

4
3

,0
0

6
,9

8
9

£
  

   
  

5
6

,0
8

3
,2

4
1

£
  

   
 

1
8

,9
1

5
,1

0
2

£
  

   
 

4
0

,7
6

2
,5

2
3

£
  

   
  

4
3

,0
0

6
,9

8
9

£
  

  
4

3
,3

2
7

,7
9

2
£

  
  

2
0

2,
0

9
5,

6
4

7
£

  
   

  
  

* 
A

pp
re

n
tic

e
sh

ip
s 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 w

ith
in

 jo
b

s 
to

ta
ls

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 2

01
7

P
ro

g
re

s
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
fo

re
c

a
s

t
2

9
%

1
0

0%
1

0
0%

1
0

0%
1

0
0%

0
%

7
9

%

S
k

il
ls

N
o

n
-L

G
F

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
A

re
a

 o
f n

e
w

 o
r 

im
p

ro
ve

d
 fl

o
or

sp
a

ce
 (

m
2

)
3

9
8

7
,6

3
0

1
2

,0
3

1
0

1
2

,1
1

1
0

-
3

1
,7

7
2

A
c

tu
al

 
1

5
,6

2
3

,8
4

1
£

  
   

  
7

7
,5

2
9

,8
5

7
£

  
   

 
1

9
,9

1
5

,7
9

5
£

  
   

 
5

3
,1

3
5

,3
6

6
£

  
   

  
5

9
,9

4
2

,1
4

8
£

  
  

-
£

  
   

  
  

   
  

  
 

2
1

0,
5

2
3,

1
6

6
£

  
   

  
  

F
o

re
ca

st
 f

o
r 

ye
a

r
1

2
,1

1
1

7
,6

3
0

1
2

,0
3

1
0

1
2

,1
1

1
5

,5
8

1
0

3
7

,3
5

3
F

o
re

c
a

st
 f

o
r 

ye
a

r
5

9
,9

4
2

,1
4

8
£

  
   

  
7

7
,5

2
9

,8
5

7
£

  
   

 
1

9
,9

1
5

,7
9

5
£

  
   

 
5

3
,1

3
5

,3
6

6
£

  
   

  
5

9
,9

4
2

,1
4

8
£

  
  

2
2

5,
7

5
8,

8
1

0
£

  
4

3
6,

2
8

1,
9

7
6

£
  

   
  

  
P

ro
g

re
ss

 t
ow

a
rd

s 
fo

re
ca

st
3

%
1

0
0%

-
1

0
0%

0
%

-
8

5
%

P
ro

g
re

s
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
fo

re
c

a
s

t
2

6
%

1
0

0%
1

0
0%

1
0

0%
1

0
0%

0
%

4
8

%

N
um

be
r 

o
f N

e
w

 L
e

a
rn

e
rs

 A
ss

is
te

d
0

5
9

7
1

,1
8

9
1

,2
9

9
2

,7
5

2
0

-
5

,8
3

7
T

o
ta

l 
L

G
F

 +
 n

o
n

-L
G

F
 E

xp
e

n
d

it
u

re
F

o
re

ca
st

 f
o

r 
ye

a
r

2
,7

5
2

5
9

7
1

,1
8

9
1

,2
9

9
2

,7
5

2
2

,2
1

6
1

,8
8

0
9

,9
3

3
A

c
tu

al
 

2
7

,9
9

0
,2

0
6

£
  

   
  

1
3

3,
6

1
3,

0
9

8
£

  
  

3
8

,8
3

0
,8

9
7

£
  

   
 

9
3

,8
9

7
,8

8
9

£
  

   
  

1
0

2,
9

4
9,

1
3

7
£

  
-

£
  

   
  

  
   

  
  

 
3

6
9,

2
9

1,
0

2
1

£
  

   
  

  
P

ro
g

re
ss

 t
ow

a
rd

s 
fo

re
ca

st
0

%
1

0
0%

1
0

0%
1

0
0%

0
%

-
5

9
%

F
o

re
c

a
st

 f
o

r 
ye

a
r

1
0

2,
9

4
9,

1
3

7
£

  
  

 
1

3
3,

6
1

3,
0

9
8

£
  

  
3

8
,8

3
0

,8
9

7
£

  
   

 
9

3
,8

9
7

,8
8

9
£

  
   

  
1

0
2,

9
4

9,
1

3
7

£
  

2
6

9,
0

8
6,

6
0

2
£

  
6

3
8,

3
7

7,
6

2
3

£
  

   
  

  
P

ro
g

re
s

s 
to

w
ar

d
s 

fo
re

c
a

s
t

2
7

%
+

10
0

%
+

10
0

%
+

10
0

%
+

10
0

%
+

0%
5

8
%

T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
L

e
ng

th
 o

f 
R

oa
d

 R
e

su
rf

a
ce

d 
0

0
0

2
0

0
-

2
L

e
ng

th
 o

f 
N

ew
ly

 B
ui

lt 
R

oa
d

0
0

0
0

1
0

-
1

L
e

ng
th

 N
e

w
 C

yc
le

 W
a

ys
 

8
8

1
0

4
1

0
0

-
3

2

C
o

n
tr

a
c

tu
al

 C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
  (

m
a

n
u

al
 e

n
tr

y)
P

re
vi

o
u

s 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r
T

h
is

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

T
h

is
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r
1

5
-1

7
1

7
-1

8
1

8
-1

9
1

9
-2

0
2

0
-2

1
T

o
ta

l
P

ro
je

c
t 

N
a

m
e

Q
3_

1
9

20
Q

4_
1

9
20

P
ro

je
c

t 
N

a
m

e
Q

3_
1

9
20

Q
4_

1
9

20
F

o
re

c
a

st
5

6
,0

8
3

,2
4

1
£

  
   

 
1

8
,9

1
5

,1
0

2
£

  
   

 
4

0
,7

6
2

,5
2

3
£

  
   

  
4

3
,0

0
6

,9
8

9
£

  
  

4
3

,3
2

7
,7

9
2

£
  

  
2

0
2,

0
9

5,
6

4
7

£
  

   
  

  
A

c
tu

al
5

6
,0

8
3

,2
4

1
£

  
   

 
1

8
,9

1
5

,1
0

2
£

  
   

 
4

0
,7

6
2

,5
2

3
£

  
   

  
4

3
,0

0
6

,9
8

9
£

  
  

4
3

,3
2

7
,7

9
2

£
  

  
2

0
2,

0
9

5,
6

4
7

£
  

   
  

  
W

e
st

on
 C

ol
le

g
e

 L
a

w
 &

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
A

ca
d

e
m

y
N

/A
N

/A
In

no
va

tio
n

T
h

e
m

e
N

/A
N

/A
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

+
0%

+
0%

+
0%

+
0%

+
0%

+
0%

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 P

a
ck

a
g

e 
1

5
/1

6
N

/A
N

/A
B

u
si

n
e

ss
 S

u
p

p
or

t 
T

h
e

m
e

 
N

/A
N

/A
M

e
tr

oW
e

st
 P

h
a

se
 2

A
G

A
B

ri
st

o
l V

ir
tu

a
l R

e
a

lit
y 

L
a

b
G

G
F

u
tu

re
 T

e
ch

n
o

lo
g

y 
C

en
tr

e
N

/A
N

/A
B

ri
st

o
l S

E
T

sq
u

a
re

d
 C

e
nt

re
 U

rg
e

n
t E

xp
an

si
o

n
N

/A
N

/A
C

o
m

m
en

ta
ry

O
pe

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
a

bl
e

 C
ity

 R
e

g
io

n
G

A
B

a
th

 Q
u

a
ys

 S
o

u
th

 P
h

1a
 E

n
a

b
lin

g
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

A
G

G
B

ri
st

o
l R

o
bo

tic
s 

L
ab

o
ra

to
ry

 a
nd

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 E

n
te

rp
ri

se
 Z

o
neN

/A
N

/A
B

a
th

 Q
u

a
ys

 N
o

rh
 P

h
1

b
 R

e
lo

ca
tio

n
 o

f 
C

o
a

ch
 P

a
rk

N
/A

N
/A

C
om

po
si

te
s 

B
ri

d
g

e
 C

o
ns

tr
u

ct
io

n
A

R
A

G
C

ol
st

o
n

 H
a

ll 
P

h
a

se
 2

 T
ra

n
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
P

ro
je

ct
G

A
W

e
st

 o
f 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 G
ro

w
th

 H
ub

N
/A

N
/A

M
e

tr
oB

u
s

N
/A

N
/A

M
e

tr
oW

e
st

 P
h

a
se

 1
A

G
A

W
e

st
on

-s
u

pe
r-

M
a

re
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 E
n

ha
n

ce
m

en
tA
G

G
A

e
ro

sp
a

ce
 B

ri
st

o
l (

fo
rm

e
rl

y 
B

ri
st

o
l A

e
ro

sp
a

ce
 C

e
nt

re
)

N
/A

N
/A

W
e

st
on

 C
ol

le
g

e
 H

e
al

th
 a

n
d

 A
ct

iv
e 

L
iv

in
g

 C
en

tr
e

N
/A

N
/A

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 P

a
ck

a
g

e 
1

6
/1

7
N

/A
N

/A
W

e
st

on
 C

ol
le

g
e

 C
o

ns
tr

u
ct

io
n 

S
ki

lls
 C

en
tr

e
N

/A
N

/A
C

ity
 o

f 
B

ri
st

o
l C

o
lle

g
e

 A
d

va
n

ce
d

 E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

 E
xt

e
n

si
o

n
N

/A
N

/A
F

o
od

W
or

ks
S

W
 I

n
n

ov
a

tio
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
G

A
G

B
ri

st
o

l &
 B

a
th

 C
u

ltu
ra

l D
e

st
in

a
tio

ns
 M

e
d

ia
 B

a
n

k
N

/A
N

/A
A

3
9

/A
3

6
8 

M
a

rk
sb

u
ry

 J
u

n
ct

io
n 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
S

ch
em

e
N

/A
N

/A
B

&
N

E
S

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 S
ki

lls
 C

e
nt

re
N

/A
N

/A
B

ro
m

le
y 

H
ea

th
 V

ia
d

u
ct

N
/A

N
/A

A
zt

e
c 

W
es

t 
R

o
u

n
da

b
o

ut
N

/A
N

/A
B

ri
st

o
l a

n
d

 B
a

th
 S

ci
e

nc
e

 P
a

rk
 P

ur
ch

a
se

G
G

N
or

th
 S

o
m

e
rs

et
 E

nt
e

rp
ri

se
 T

e
ch

no
lo

g
y 

C
o

lle
ge

N
/A

N
/A

In
st

itu
te

 o
f A

d
va

n
ce

d
 A

u
to

m
o

tiv
e

 P
ro

pu
ls

io
n

 S
ys

te
m

s 
G

G
N

or
th

 S
o

u
th

 L
in

k 
a

nd
 W

e
st

 W
ic

k 
R

o
u

nd
a

b
ou

t
A

G
A

B
a

th
 Q

u
a

ys
 N

o
rt

h
 I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
u

re
 D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

W
o

rk
s

A
G

G
S

a
w

 C
lo

se
N

/A
N

/A
S

T
E

A
M

 C
e

n
tr

e
G

G
H

ea
lth

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y 

H
ub

N
/A

N
/A

A
n

im
a

l M
a

na
g

e
m

e
n

t C
e

nt
re

A
G

N
/A

S
u

p
e

rf
a

st
 B

ro
a

db
a

n
d 

(S
G

C
)

G
G

K
e

yn
sh

a
m

 T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 Im

pr
o

ve
m

e
nt

s
G

G
T

o
w

n
 S

q
u

a
re

 W
es

to
n

-s
u

p
e

r-
M

a
re

A
G

S
o

u
th

 G
lo

u
ce

st
e

rs
h

ir
e 

S
us

ta
in

a
bl

e
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 P

a
ck

a
g

e
 2

0
1

8
-2

0
2

1
G

A
B

a
th

 Q
u

a
ys

 B
ri

d
ge

G
A

G
C

ri
b

bs
 P

a
tc

hw
a

y 
M

et
ro

B
u

s 
E

xt
e

ns
io

n
 

A
G

A
G

C
at

le
 M

a
rk

et
 R

oa
d

 D
e

m
o

lit
io

n
 W

o
rk

s
N

/A
N

/A
G

ro
w

-O
n2

A
G

G
N

T
P

ro
S

tr
uc

t
N

/A
N

/A
A

A
G

N
a

m
e

 M
a

lc
o

lm
 C

o
e

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 P

a
ck

a
g

e 
1

7
/1

8
A

G
A

G
C

ity
 o

f 
B

ri
st

o
l A

dv
a

n
ce

d
 C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
s 

S
ki

lls
 C

en
tr

e
A

G
A

G
B

E
M

A
 T

ra
in

in
g

 C
e

n
tr

e
G

G
B

a
th

 C
o

lle
ge

 C
a

te
ri

n
g

 &
 H

o
sp

ita
lit

y 
E

d
u

ca
tio

n 
&

 T
ra

in
in

g 
H

ub
G

A
S

ig
n

a
tu

re

T
ra

ns
p

o
rt

 T
h

e
m

e
N

/A
N

/A
O

ve
rp

ro
gr

a
m

m
in

g
N

/A
N

/A
S

ki
lls

 T
h

em
e

N
/A

N
/A

W
e

st
on

-S
up

e
r-

M
a

re
 S

us
ta

in
b

le
 T

ra
n

sp
or

t 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

-
A

G
D

ig
ita

l/I
n

te
rn

e
t 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

N
/A

N
/A

-
-

-
D

a
te

 1
3

 M
a

y 
2

0
2

0

C
ul

tu
ra

l S
e

ct
o

r 
T

he
m

e
N

/A
N

/A
-

-
-

A
re

a
 le

a
d

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
el

iv
e

ra
b

le
s 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

ro
g

re
s

s

L
G

F
 A

w
ar

d
1

5
-1

7
F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

Y
e

a
r

T
o

ta
l

H
o

u
si

n
g

T
h

is
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r

1
5

-1
7

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
Y

ea
r

T
h

is
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r

U
m

b
re

lla
 (

U
rb

a
n

 M
u

lti
 W

ir
el

e
ss

 B
ro

a
d

ba
n

d
 a

n
d

 

W
ith

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

tio
n

 o
f 

th
e

 W
e

st
o

n 
C

o
lle

g
e

 A
n

im
a

l M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t T

ra
in

in
g 

C
e

n
tr

e
 t

h
is

 q
ua

rt
e

r,
 t

h
e 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

of
 c

o
m

pl
e

te
d

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
st

an
d

s 
at

 2
2

.  

O
n

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
sc

h
e

m
e

 w
a

s 
fu

lly
 a

pp
ro

ve
d

 a
nd

 a
d

de
d

 to
 th

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
h

is
 q

ua
rt

e
r 

- 
th

e
 W

e
st

o
n

-s
up

e
r-

M
a

re
 S

u
st

a
in

a
b

le
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 p

ro
je

ct
.  

Ju
st

 tw
o

 s
ch

e
m

e
s 

re
m

a
in

 
a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 w

ith
 c

o
n

d
iti

o
n

s 
(a

n
d 

a
re

 th
e

re
fo

re
 n

o
t 

in
cl

ud
e

d
 o

n
 th

e
 d

a
sh

b
o

a
rd

) 
- 

P
o

rt
w

a
y 

S
ta

tio
n

 a
n

d
 t

he
 A

4
0

1
8

 C
o

rr
id

o
r 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 -
 a

lth
o

u
g

h 
th

e
se

 a
re

 e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 in
 th

e 
co

m
in

g
 w

e
ek

s.
  

 

O
ve

rp
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

 c
o

n
tin

u
e

s 
to

 b
e

 u
se

d
 to

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h

e 
ris

k 
o

f d
e

la
y 

a
nd

 lo
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 fo

re
ca

st
 s

p
e

n
d

. 
 T

h
e

 L
E

P
 B

o
ar

d
 r

e
ce

iv
e

 a
 r

e
g

ul
a

r 
da

sh
b

o
a

rd
 r

e
p

o
rt

 fo
r 

sc
h

e
m

e
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 th
e

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 s

ch
e

m
e

s 
p

re
se

n
t '

R
e

d
' o

r 
'A

m
b

e
r 

R
e

d
' r

a
tin

g
s 

th
is

 h
a

s 
tr

ig
g

e
re

d
 a

 d
e

e
p

 d
iv

e
. W

e
 n

o
w

 h
a

ve
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
u

a
l c

o
m

m
itm

e
n

ts
 o

f s
o

m
e

 £
7

.3
m

 b
e

yo
nd

 th
e

 t
o

ta
l o

f 
o

u
r 

fu
ll 

L
G

F
 fu

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 o

ve
rp

ro
g

ra
m

m
in

g
 o

ve
ra

ll 
st

a
n

d
s 

a
t 

so
m

e
 £

1
2

m
.  

A
n

y 
d

e
la

y 
in

 th
e

 c
o

n
fir

m
a

tio
n 

o
f f

u
ll 

L
G

F
 f

u
nd

in
g

 f
or

 2
0

2
0

/2
1

 w
ill

 le
a

ve
 u

s 
fa

ci
n

g
 a

 fu
n

d
in

g
 s

ho
rt

fa
ll 

fo
r 

in
-y

e
a

r 
co

n
tr

a
ct

u
a

l c
o

m
m

itm
e

n
ts

 a
n

d 
a

 v
ie

w
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
ke

n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 to
 a

d
dr

e
ss

 
th

is
 r

is
k,

 in
cl

u
d

in
g

 p
o

te
n

tia
lly

 c
e

a
si

n
g 

o
r 

pa
u

si
n

g
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

 E
qu

a
lly

, 
th

e
 la

ck
 o

f c
e

rt
a

in
ty

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 s

uc
ce

ss
o

r 
fu

n
d

in
g 

to
 th

e
 L

G
F

 is
 in

cr
e

a
si

n
g

ly
 b

e
co

m
in

g
 a

n 
is

su
e

 in
 b

a
la

n
ci

n
g

 o
u

t d
e

liv
e

ry
 

a
n

d
 o

ve
rp

ro
g

ra
m

m
in

g
.

W
e

 r
e

m
a

in
 o

n 
tr

a
ck

 to
 e

xc
e

ed
 th

e
 G

ro
w

th
 D

e
a

l j
o

b
 a

nd
 m

a
tc

h
 fu

n
d

in
g

 ta
rg

e
ts

. W
ith

 o
ve

rp
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

 a
n

d
 fl

ex
ib

le
 u

se
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

 p
ot

s 
w

e
 a

re
 c

o
n

fid
en

t w
e

 c
a

n
 d

e
liv

e
r 

fu
ll 

L
G

F
 s

p
e

n
d

 b
y 

M
a

rc
h 

2
1

 a
s 

lo
n

g
 a

s 
fu

ll 
fu

n
d

in
g

 fo
r 

2
0

2
0

/2
1

 is
 r

e
le

a
se

d
 a

t t
h

is
 ti

m
e

.

P
ro

je
c

t 
R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
s

T
o

ta
l

Page 20


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on 21 April 2020
	4 Future Scenarios
	5 LGF update

